
    

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 1 of 4 
February 16, 2016 

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Tuesday, February 16, 2016 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER   7:00 PM   Mayor Porter 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Items not on the agenda but relevant to City business may be discussed at this meeting. Citizens are encouraged to 
attend all meetings of the City Council to insure that they stay informed. Agenda items may be moved forward if a 
Public Hearing is scheduled. 
a. Additions to the agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.  
 
PRESENTATIONS / COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Request for Recognition:  If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a green “Request for Recognition” form.  
Forms are on the table at the back of the room. Recommended time for presentation is 10 minutes. Recommended 
time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
• Stayton Public Library Foundation – Endowment Contribution 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. February 1, 2016 City Council Minutes 
b. Resolution No. 940, Budget Transfer  

 
Purpose of the Consent Agenda: 
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, resolutions, minutes, bills, and other items which 
are routine in nature and for which no debate is anticipated, shall be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Any 
item placed on the Consent Agenda may be removed at the request of any council member prior to the 
time a vote is taken.  All remaining items of the Consent Agenda are then disposed of in a single motion 
to adopt the Consent Agenda.  This motion is not debatable.  The Recorder to the Council will then poll 
the council members individually by a roll call vote.  If there are any dissenting votes, each item on the 
consent Agenda is then voted on individually by roll call vote.  Copies of the Council packets include more 
detailed staff reports, letters, resolutions, and other supporting materials.  A citizen wishing to review 
these materials may do so at Stayton City Hall, 362 N. Third Avenue, Stayton, or the Stayton Public 
Library, 515 N. First Avenue, Stayton. 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting. If you require special accommodations contact Deputy City Recorder Alissa 
Angelo at (503) 769-3425.



    

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 2 of 4 
February 16, 2016 

PUBLIC HEARING 
Ordinance No. 993, Regarding Mixed Use Developments in the Commercial Retail and 
Commercial General Zones 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
b. Questions from Council 
c. Proponents’ Testimony 
d. Opponents’ Testimony 
e. General Testimony 
f. Questions from Public 
g. Questions from Council 
h. Staff Summary 
i. Close of Hearing 
j. Council Deliberation 
k. Council Decision on Ordinance No. 993, Regarding Mixed Use Developments in the 

Commercial Retail and Commercial General Zones 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Ownership of Open Space, Wildlife Meadows Master Planned Development  Action 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
Ordinance No. 994, Amending SMC Title 5.08 and 5.32     Action 
a. Staff Report – Chief Rich Sebens 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 

 
Resolution No. 941, Refinancing Bonds       Action 
a. Staff Report – Christine Shaffer 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS 
Finance Director’s Report – Christine Shaffer     Informational 
a. January 2016 Monthly Finance Department Report 
 
Police Chief’s Report – Rich Sebens       Informational 
a. January 2016 Statistical Report 
 
Public Works Director’s Report – Lance Ludwick     Informational 
a. January 2016 Operating Report 
 
Planning & Development Director’s Report – Dan Fleishman   Informational 
a. January 2016 Activities Report 
 
 



    

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 3 of 4 
February 16, 2016 

Library Director’s Report – Pam Pugsley      Informational 
a. January 2016 Activities 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Recommended time for presentations is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR      
 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR      
 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 
 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS – Monday, March 7, 2016 
• Annual OLCC Renewals 
• Western Avenue Bid Award 
 
ADJOURN



    

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 4 of 4 
February 16, 2016 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

FEBRUARY 2016 
Monday February 15 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF PRESIDENTS DAY 
Tuesday February 16 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday February 17 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday February 29 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

MARCH 2016 
Tuesday March 1 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday March 7 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday March 8 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday March 11 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Wednesday March 16 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday March 21 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday March 28 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

April 2016 
Monday April 4 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday April 5 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Friday April 8 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Tuesday April 12 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday April 18 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday April 20 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday April 25 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

May 2016 
Monday May 2 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday May 3 Budget Committee 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday May 3 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Thursday May 5 Budget Committee 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday May 9 Budget Committee 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday May 10 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday May 13 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday May 16 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday May 18 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday May 30 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF MEMORIAL DAY 
Monday May 31 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

 



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 1 of 3 
February 1, 2016 

City of Stayton 
City Council Meeting Minutes 

February 1, 2016 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA STREET, STAYTON 

Time Start: 7:00 P.M.     Time End:  7:47 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF  
Mayor Henry Porter Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
Councilor Priscilla Glidewell Keith Campbell, City Administrator 
Councilor Ralph Lewis Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development 
Councilor Jennifer Niegel Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director 
Councilor Brian Quigley Rich Sebens, Police Chief 
Councilor Joe Usselman (excused) Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
 David Rhoten, City Attorney (excused) 
 Wallace Lien, Special Counsel 

 
AGENDA ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
Announcements 
a. Additions to the Agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc. 

 
None 
None 
 

Presentations / Comments from the Public 
a. Proclamation  in Honor of Lance Cpl. Ty Hart 
 
 
 
b. Dale Young 
 
 
 
c. Pam Pugsley 
 
 
 
 
d. Dave Edwards 

 
Mayor Porter read the proclamation and 
presented it to the family of Lance Cpl. Ty Hart. 
 
Mr. Young gave a brief presentation related to his 
Community Grant Application for Movies in the 
Park. 
 
Ms. Pugsley spoke in support of the Friends of the 
Library Community Grant Application for a new 
sign at the Library. Mary Albert also spoke in 
support of the sign. 
 
Mr. Edwards spoke in support of the Smokin’ 
Down the Highway Barbeque Festival’s Community 
Grant Application. 

Consent Agenda 
a. January 19, 2016 City Council Minutes 
b. Personnel Matters Appeal Policy and Procedures 

 
Motion from Councilor Niegel, seconded by 
Councilor Lewis, to approve the Consent Agenda. 
Motion passed 4:0. 

Public Hearing None 
 
 



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 2 of 3 
February 1, 2016 

Unfinished Business 
Community Grants 
a. Staff Report – Christine Shaffer 

 
 

b. Council Deliberation 
 
 
 
 
 

c. Council Decision 
 

 
 
Ms. Shaffer briefly reviewed the report and 
rankings included in the Council packet. 
 
Council discussion on how ranking categories were 
chosen. Some Council members felt the awards 
were repetitive to the same organizations and 
would like to see more variety. There is a category 
referred to as “New and Unique.” 
 
Motion from Councilor Glidewell, seconded by 
Councilor Lewis, to award the Community Grants 
at an even percentage based on the rankings. 
 
Council Discussion: The Council requested to know 
exact dollar amounts that would be awarded 
based on the motion. 
 
Peer Court – $1,100 
Movies in the Park – $875 
Smokin’ Down the Highway – $1,375 
Santiam Heritage Foundation – $550 
Veterans History – $275 
Stayton Friends of the Library – $825 
 
Councilor Quigley requested the grant process and 
procedure be reviewed by Council prior to the next 
process begins. 
 
Motion passed 4:0.  

New Business None 
Staff / Commission Reports None 
Presentations / Comments from the Public None 
Business from the City Administrator Mr. Campbell reminded the Council of the 

Executive Session scheduled upon the 
adjournment of the meeting. 

Business from the Mayor Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by 
Councilor Niegel, to ratify the Mayor’s 
appointment of Ellen Nunez to the Planning 
Commission and Cari Sessums to the Public Safety 
Commission. Motion passed 4:0. 

Business from the Council Councilor Quigley asked if staff had a copy of the 
Council Rules on hand. They did not, but would get 
a copy out to the councilor.  
 
 
 
 



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 3 of 3 
February 1, 2016 

Future Agenda Items – February 16, 2015 
• Second Hand Ordinance 
• Land Use Public Hearing 
• Stayton Public Library Foundation – Endowment Contribution 
• Open Space Dedication 

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 16TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2016, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 

Date:    By:   
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

 
Date:   Attest:   

 Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
 
Date:      Transcribed by:       
   Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 







 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: February 16, 2016 

 SUBJECT: Public Hearing on Ordinance 993 Regarding Mixed Use 
Developments in the Commercial Retail and Commercial 
General Zones 

  
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is a public hearing on proposed legislative text amendments to 
the Stayton Land Use and Development Code, Title 17, Chapter 17.16 regarding mixed use 
developments in the Commercial Retail and Commercial General Zones 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The Code currently allows multi-family dwellings in the CR and CG zones provided they are part 
of mixed use development and not on the ground floor.  Single family dwellings, duplexes and 
triplexes are not permitted in these zones.  Whereas “multi-family dwelling” is defined as a 
building with four or more dwelling units, the code would not allow a mixed use development 
with three or fewer dwellings on the upper floors of the buildings in these two zones. 

ANALYSIS 

The proposed amendment would permit single family dwellings, duplexes and triplexes in the 
CR and CG zones, under the same provisions as currently apply to multi-family dwellings, 
thereby allowing a mixed us building to have three or fewer dwelling units on the upper floors. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Planning Commission has recommended that the City Council enact the amendments.  
Their Order is attached.  Staff recommends the City Council enact Ordinance 993 as presented.   

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Approve the first consideration of Ordinance 993 

Move to approve Ordinance No 993 as presented. 



 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote 
shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.  If the vote is unanimous, Ordinance No. 993 is 
enacted and will be presented to the Mayor for his approval. 

If the vote is not unanimous, Ordinance No. 993 will be brought before the Council for a 
second consideration at the March 7, 2016 meeting. 

2. Approve the Ordinance with modifications  

Move to approve Ordinance No. 993 with the following changes … and direct staff to 
incorporate these changes into the Ordinance before the Ordinance is presented to the City 
Council for a second consideration. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote 
shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.  If the first consideration is approved, Ordinance 
No. 993 will be brought before the Council for a second consideration at its March 7, 2016 
meeting. 

3. Return the Ordinance to Staff for further refinement 

Move to direct staff to modify Ordinance No. 993 with the following changes … and present 
the Ordinance to the City Council for further discussion and consideration at the March 7 
meeting. 

4. Retain the Code unchanged  

No motion is necessary. 

 



Proposed Amendments Regarding Mixed Use Buildings for City Council Public Hearing February 16, 2016 

Additions are underlined; Deletions are crossed out 

Table 17.16.070.1 Permitted Land Use 

  LD MD HD DMD CR CG CCMU DCMU DRMU ID IC IL IA P 

RESIDENTIAL USES 

1 Single-Family Detached Dwellings 12 P1 P1  P1 S2 S2         

1a Single-Family Attached Dwellings   S1 S1 S2 S2 C/S1 S1 S1      

2 Manufactured Home 12 P1 P  P1           

3 Duplex  P13  P13 S2 S2 C1 P1 P1      

4 Triplex  S1  S1 S2 S2 C/S1 S1 S1      

5 Multi-Family Dwellings   S1 S1 S2 S2 C/S1 S1 S1      

6 Mobile Home Park  S S            

7 Dwelling as a caretaker residence            S   

8 Residential Group Home P P  P1           

9 Residential Facilities  S S S   C1 P1 P1      

 

2 Only as part of mixed use development, and not on the ground floor 





 

Ordinance No. 993 Amending SMC Title 17 Provisions Regarding Mixed Use Developments in the CR & CG 
Zones 

ORDINANCE NO. 993 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING STAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE (SMC) TITLE 
17, REGARDING MIXED USE DEVELOPMENTS IN THE COMMERCIAL 

RETAIL AND COMMERCIAL GENERAL ZONES 
 
WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statutes, Chapter 197 requires municipalities to adopt and 
implement a comprehensive land use planning program in accordance with statewide planning 
goals established by the Legislature and the Oregon Land Conservation and Development 
Commission; 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton has adopted Title 17 of the Stayton Municipal Code as the Land 
Use and Development Code; 

WHEREAS, SMC Title 17, Chapter 20, Section 17.16.070 controls the uses in individual zones 
within the City and currently requires mixed use developments in the Commercial Retail and 
Commercial General zones to have four dwelling units or more; 

WHEREAS, THE City Council has determined that it is appropriate to allow mixed use 
developments in commercial zones to have less than four dwelling units; 

WHEREAS, the Stayton Planning Commission has initiated the process for amending the Land 
Use and Development Code and following a public hearing, has recommended that the Stayton 
City Council enact proposed amendments; and 

WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council, following a public hearing, does find that the 
amendments proposed by the Planning Commission are appropriate. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Stayton ordains: 

Section 1.  SMC Title 17, Chapter 16 amended.  Stayton Municipal Code, Title 17, Chapter 16 
is hereby amended by changing Table 17.16.070.1 to list Single-Family Detached Dwellings, 
Single-Family Attached Dwellings, Duplex, and Triplex as permitted uses following site plan 
review in the Commercial Retail and Commercial General zones, with footnote 2 applying to 
these uses. 

Section 2.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 30 days after adoption by the 
Stayton City Council and the Mayor’s signing. 

Section 3.  A copy of this Ordinance shall be furnished to the State of Oregon, Department of 
Land Conservation and Development forthwith. 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this 16th day of February, 2016.  

CITY OF STAYTON 

Signed: ____________, 2016 BY: _______________________________ 
 Henry A. Porter, Mayor 



 

Ordinance No. 993 Amending SMC Title 17 Provisions Regarding Mixed Use Developments in the CR & CG 
Zones 

Signed: ____________, 2016 ATTEST: _______________________________ 
 Keith D. Campbell, 
 City Administrator 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 _______________________________ 
 David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Henry A Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: February 16, 2016 

 SUBJECT: Ownership of Open Space, Wildlife Meadows Master Planned 
Development 

  
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is a determination as to whether the City should assume 
ownership of the open space in the proposed Wildlife Meadows master planned development. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

RJR Properties, LLC has submitted an application to the City for a master planned development 
for the development of their property on Shaff Road, immediately to the east of Stayton Middle 
School.  The development, as proposed, would consist of 44 lots with a mix of single family 
detached, single family attached, and duplex homes for a total of 48 dwelling units.  In 
exchange for the ability to have a mix of housing types within the development and for lot sizes 
reduced below the minimum otherwise required within the Low Density Residential zone, the 
application proposes an area of open space that will not be part of any of the individual lots. 

At their November meeting, the Planning Commission approved the conceptual plan for the 
development, with a number of conditions of approval. 

Section 17.24.100.2.d.4) of the Code controls the ownership of the open space in a master 
planned development.  That section says, 

4) The open space shall be conveyed in accordance with one of the following 
methods: 

a) At the sole discretion of the City Council, open space may be dedicated to 
the City as publicly owned and maintained open space.  Open space 
proposed for dedication to the City must be acceptable to the City 
Planner and Public Works Director with regard to the size, shape, 
location, improvement, environmental condition, and budgetary and 
maintenance abilities. 



 

 

b) By conveying title to a nonprofit corporation, lot-owners association or 
other legal entity, with a conservation easement deeded to the City.  The 
terms of such lease or other instrument of conveyance must include 
provisions for maintenance suitable to the decision authority, with advice 
from the City Planner, Public Works Director, and City Attorney. 

The plan submitted by the applicant includes a 3.28-acre tract proposed to be dedicated to the 
City as a public park.  This tract is located along Mill Creek, where the City’s Park and Recreation 
Master Plan indicates the future location of a linear park and non-motorized trail.  The 
applicant intends to improve the tract with a paved recreational trail, paved parking spaces and 
landscape plantings.  The tract will also be used for stormwater management facilities.  A copy 
of the proposal submitted by the applicant is attached. 

One of the conditions of approval from the Planning Commission for the conceptual plan was 
that following submittal of the detailed development plan but before the Planning 
Commission’s hearing on that plan, the City Council shall make its determination regarding 
ownership of the open space in accordance with Section 17.24.100.2.d.4). 

ANALYSIS 

Should the City accept ownership of the open space tract, the City will assume the financial 
responsibility for maintenance of the park space.  Approval of the detailed development plan 
will require execution of a development agreement between the applicant and the City.  That 
agreement will require that the developer maintain the stormwater management facilities for a 
period of time and then, once the City is satisfied that they are operating properly and the 
vegetation is established, the City will take over maintenance. 

The Public Works Department has indicated that the additional costs of maintaining the new 
park area are within its financial resources. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the City Council accept dedication of the open space to the City when the 
plat for the subdivision is recorded. 

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Accept public ownership of the open space in Wildlife Meadows 

Move to accept public ownership of the open space in the Wildlife Meadows subdivision. 

2. Determine the open space in Wildlife Meadows should be privately owned.  

Move that the open space in the Wildlife Meadows subdivision should be owned by a 
homeowners association. 

 



[S47°06'01"E]

[130.85']

[S44°25'13"E]

[89.99']

[S56°18'23"E]

[90.51']

[S63°16'04"E]

[127.52']

[S72°21'42"E]

[94.38']

[S78°30'50"E]

[86.92']

[S82°59'35"E]

[25.47']

SS

P
 
 
K

M

I

L

L

 

C

R

E

E

K

1

0

0

'
 

R

I

P

A

R

I

A

N

 

S

E

T

B

A

C

K

9+00

10+00

11+00

0
+

0
0

1
+

0
0

2

+

0

0

2

+

1

2

0

+

0

0

1

+

0

0

1

+

6

9

DETENTION POND SECTION

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

437

440

444

0+00

4
3

9
.
9

7

1+00

4
3

9
.
4

0

4
3

9
.
4

7
9

2+00

4
3

8
.
0

2

2+20

TOP OF WALL

STA = 0+02.21

ELEV = 443.50

BASE OF WALL

STA = 0+03.22

ELEV = 442.50

EDGE OF TRAIL

STA = 1+22.45

ELEV = 442.35

EDGE OF TRAIL

STA = 1+34.45

ELEV = 442.11

-
1

.
5

0

%

-

2

0

.

2

5

%

1

6

.

3

3

%

-

2

.

0

0

%

-

2

5

.

0

0

%

-

3

3

.

0

0

%

0.00%

-0
.5

0
%

0
.5

0
%

BOTTOM OF FLOW CHANNEL

STA = 0+66.61

ELEV = 438.82

WATER QUALITY SECTION

436

437

438

439

440

436

440

0+00

4
3

9
.
4

7

1+00

4
3

8
.
6

5

4
3

7
.
7

5
0

1+69.42

4
3

7
.
1

5

0.00%

-9.97%

0.00%

1

4

.

3

6

%

-1.97%

-25.00%

-33.00%

TOP OF BANK

STA = 0+16.47

ELEV = 439.00

EDGE OF TRAIL

STA = 1+30.64

ELEV = 439.50

EDGE OF TRAIL

STA = 1+38.76

ELEV = 439.34

NOT TO SCALE

TYPICAL NORTH PROPERTY LINE FENCE

VARIES
SLOPE TOWARDS

MILL CREEK

PROPOSED CEDAR

FENCE

1.0' RETAINING WALL

REAR YARD

VARIES

1-3'

6.0'

NOT TO SCALE

TYPICAL SEATWALL

VARIES

5.0' WALK

PARK PARKING

STALL AT

CUL-DE-SAC

18"±

D
A
T
E
:

P
R
O

J
E
C
T
:

D
R
A
W

N
 
B
Y
:

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

 
B
Y
:

U
D

E
L
L
 
E
N

G
I
N

E
E
R
I
N

G

A
N

D

L
A
N

D
 
S
U

R
V
E
Y
I
N

G
,
 
L
L
C

6
3
 
E
A
S
T
 
A
S
H

 
S
T
.

L
E
B
A
N

O
N

,
 
O

R
E
G

O
N

 
9
7
3
5
5

(
5
4
1
)
 
4
5
1
-
5
1
2
5
 
P
H

.

(
5
4
1
)
 
4
5
1
-
1
3
6
6
 
F
A
X

W
I
L
D

L
I
F
E
 
M

E
A
D

O
W

S
 
S
U

B
D

I
V
I
S
I
O

N

D
E
T
A
I
L
E
D

 
M

A
S
T
E
R
 
P
L
A
N

N
E
D

D
E
V
E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T

S
T
A
Y
T
O

N
,
 
O

R
E
G

O
N

C
L
I
E
N

T
:

R
J
R
 
P
R
O

P
E
R
T
I
E
S
 
C
O

.

7
7
7
 
S
H

A
F
F
 
R
O

A
D

S
T
A
Y
T
O

N
,
 
O

R
E
G

O
N

 
9
7
3
8
3

J
A
N

U
A
R
Y
 
2
0
,
 
2
0
1
6

1
0
-
0
9
2
 
R
J
R
 
P
R
O

P
E
R
T
I
E
S

B
S
V
,
 
E
C
H

,
 
A
A
P

B
S
V

SCALE:  SEE  BARSCALE

PLAN REVISIONS
DATE

Sheet

of

E
X
H

I
B
I
T
 
A

10

O
P
E
N

S
P
A
C
E
/
P
U

B
L
I
C
 
P
A
R
K
 
P
L
A
N

10

CENTERLINE

OF MILL CREEK

400 20 60

BARSCALE

11.00'

2.00'

8.00'

1.00'

16.46'

10.00'

8.00'

8.00'

12.00'

12.00'

8.00'

12.00'

9.00'

14.17'

4.00'

4.00'

2.00'

2.00'

200 10 30

BARSCALE

0'

2'

4'

200 10 30

BARSCALE

0'

2'

4'

8" CULVERT

IE 438.00 (S)

IE 437.50 (N)

(P) STORM

DETENTION AREA

(P) STORM

WATER QUALITY

BASIN

BASE ELEVATION

437.75'

(P) RECREATIONAL TRAIL

PER CITY STANDARD DWG. 314

FOR LANDSCAPING DETAILS

SEE ARCHITECTURAL LANDSCAPING PLAN

PROPOSED TRAIL

ACCESS TO PUBLIC PARK

PROPOSED PARKING

FOR PARK ACCESS

R=50'

R=20'

R=34'

R=34'

R=34'

R=34'

R=50'

R=50'

R=50'

PROPOSED SEATWALL

SEE DETAIL THIS SHEET



 
Ord 994 Proposed Amendments to SMC Ch. 5.08 & 5.32 Second Hand Dealers and Pawnbrokers 

February 16, 2016 
Page 1 of 2   

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO: Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM: Rich Sebens, Chief of Police,  
 
DATE: February 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 994, “Secondhand and Pawnbrokers”  

ISSUE: 

The City has had a Secondhand and Pawnbroker section of the municipal code in place for 
numerous years.  The code regulates property that can be purchased and sold by secondhand 
and pawn dealers.  Historically, secondhand property has a propensity to come from criminal 
activity.  Therefore, cities enact code that helps to regulate the sales and monitor which 
properties are being sold. 

Recently, the City was asked by a local business to update the code to bring it to common 
business practices for the industry.  The City was also asked to set the code up with a license 
process as it is easier for the businesses to operate with other dealers if they have a City 
license.  Having a City license helps give them legitimacy. 

The City currently has six known businesses within the city limits that deal in secondhand 
property. Of those six, three of them would be affected by the updated code. The other three 
do not require licensing based on the type of property they buy and sell. 

Some of the updates to the code include the following: licensing requirements and exceptions, 
record keeping, and the regulated property list.  One of the most significant changes was to 
allow for electronic reporting.  A majority of the municipalities that require licensing have 
electronic reporting.  Electronic reporting allows the dealer to enter the property into a 
national database which informs the dealer if the property had previously been reported as 
stolen.  It also allows law enforcement officers to check for property that has been reported to 
them as being stolen and determine who sold it to the dealer.  Currently, tracking is done 
through “paper” reports and are turned in to the police department.  They are typically not 
accessible to other law enforcement agencies or other dealers.  The electronic system is 
accessible to any law enforcement and any dealer who subscribes to the system. 

In preparation for these changes, input was received from some of the local businesses. Those 
affected by the changes had an opportunity to review and give comment prior to submission to 



 
Ord 994 Proposed Amendments to SMC Ch. 5.08 & 5.32 Second Hand Dealers and Pawnbrokers 

February 16, 2016 
Page 2 of 2   

Council.  The proposed changes were reviewed by the City attorney and placed in City Hall for 
public review. 

 

OPTION AND MOTIONS 

1. Approve Ordinance No. 994 as presented. 

Move to approve Ordinance No. 994 as presented. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their 
vote shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.  If the vote is unanimous, Ordinance No. 
994 is enacted and will be presented to the Mayor for his approval. 

If the vote is not unanimous, Ordinance No. 994 will be brought before the Council for a 
second consideration at the March 7, 2016 meeting. 

2. Approve Ordinance No. 994 with modifications.  

Move to approve Ordinance No. 994 with the following changes … and direct staff to 
incorporate these changes into the Ordinance  

Ordinance No. 994 will be brought before the Council for a second consideration at the 
March 7, 2016 meeting. 

3. Retain the Code unchanged. 

No motion is necessary. 



ORDINANCE NO. 994 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE STAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 5, CHAPTERS 5.08 
AND 5.32 RELATING TO BUSINESS LICENSES, PERMITS, REGULATIONS, AND 

VIOLATIONS AND SECONDHAND DEALERS AND PAWNBROKERS. 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton has Municipal Code that regulates Secondhand Dealers and 
Pawnbrokers; 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton received a request from local businesses to update the Stayton Municipal 
Code to reflect industry standards; 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton desires to update the Stayton Municipal Code (SMC) Title 5.08 to 
require licensing of Secondhand Dealers and Pawnbrokers who operate within the City; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton desires to update the SMC Title 5.32 to amend regulations in regards to 
Secondhand Dealers and Pawnbrokers. 

NOW THEREFORE, the City of Stayton ordains: 

SECTION 1.  SMC Section 5.08.010 is amended to read as:  (additions are underlined; deletions appear 
as strikethroughs): 

d. Secondhand dealer 

e. Pawnbroker  

SECTION 2.  SMC Section 5.08 is amended to fix the code numbering sequence.  

SECTION 3.  SMC Chapter 5.32 relating to Secondhand and Pawnbrokers is amended to read as set 
forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto as incorporated herein, replacing and superseding the current text of 
SMC Title 5.32 

SECTION 5.  Upon enactment by the Stayton City Council and the Mayor’s signature, the Ordinance 
shall become effective 30 days after enactment. 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 16th DAY OF, 2016. 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 
 

Signed:       By:_______________________________________ 
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 
 
 
  ATTEST      
Signed:    By:         
   Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 



   
Proposed Amendments to SMC 5.08 Business Licenses, Permits, Regulation and Violations 

Ord. 994 
Revised February 16, 2016 

Page 1 of 6 

CHAPTER 5.08 

BUSINESS LICENSES, PERMITS, REGULATIONS, AND VIOLATIONS 

SECTIONS 

5.08.1010 License/Permit Required 
5.08.1020 Application for License 
5.08.1030 Application Review 
5.08.1040 License/Permit Fees: Computation and Payment 
5.08.1050 [repealed] (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011) 
5.08.1060 License/Permit Fees: Collection Costs and Attorney  
5.08.1070 Exemptions from License/Permit Requirements 
5.08.1080 License/Permit Issuance: Recordkeeping 
5.08.1090 [repealed] (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011) 
5.08.2100 Transfer or Assignment of License/Permit 
5.08.2110 Display of License/Permit 
5.08.2120 License/Permit Renewal: Late Penalty 
5.08.2130 Revocation or Suspension of License/Permit 
5.08.2140 Appeals 
5.08.2150 Violation and Penalty (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011) 

 

5.08.1010 LICENSE/PERMIT REQUIRED 

1. No person shall engage in any of the following businesses or activities 
within the City limits without first obtaining a license or permit as 
provided in this Title, except as otherwise exempted herein: (Ord. 935, 
July 1, 2011) 

a. Carnival, amusement park, amusement concessionaire; 

b. Garage sale; 

c. Junk dealer; 

d. Secondhand Dealer; 

c.e. Pawn Broker; 

d.f. Promotional event; or 

e.g. Solicitor; or. 

f.h. Marijuana Dispensary (Ord. 987, September 21, 2015) 

 

2. The term of a license or permit shall be on a twelve (12) month cycle 
(commencing on the month of issuance) unless otherwise indicated. (Ord. 
668, July 2, 1990) 

 



   
Proposed Amendments to SMC 5.08 Business Licenses, Permits, Regulation and Violations 

Ord. 994 
Revised February 16, 2016 

Page 2 of 6 

[repealed section 3] (Ord. 987, September 21, 2015) 

 

5.08.1020 APPLICATION FOR LICENSE 

Application for all licenses and permits required by this Title shall include 
information necessary to determine the identity and address of the applicant and 
of the owner of any enterprise, nature of activity, or device to be licensed, and 
shall include such other information required by this Title or that accomplishes an 
appropriate review.  The application shall be signed by the applicant. (Ord. 935, 
July 1, 2011; Ord. 668, July 2, 1990) 

 

5.08.1030 APPLICATION REVIEW 

1. The Administrator shall refer any license/permit application to any person, 
department, or agency of the City or any party otherwise deemed 
appropriate to review the application. 

2. In reviewing the qualifications of an applicant, the following shall be 
considered, when appropriate: 

a. Conformity of the proposed activity or use of device to this Code 
and with state, and federal law; 

b. Unreasonable dangers to public health, safety, or property which 
may result from the proposed activity or use of the device or 
activity; 

c. Past violations of laws or municipal code by the applicant or 
employees; and 

d. Other considerations as to prior business practices, protection of 
the public health, safety and welfare, and as otherwise specifically 
required by this Title. (prior code 3.045) 

3. Upon receipt and review of the application by the reviewing party, each 
shall endorse the application as satisfactory or not satisfactory and return 
the application to the Administrator, who shall approve the application and 
issue the license/permit, or deny the application and notify the applicant in 
writing the reasons for such denial. The notice shall inform the applicant 
of the provisions of this Chapter providing for appeal to the City Council.  
(Ord. 935, July 1, 2011; Ord. 668, July 2, 1990) 

 

5.08.1040 LICENSE FEES: COMPUTATION AND PAYMENT 

1. No license or permit shall be issued until payment of fees, if any, as 
designated in and in accordance with a resolution to be approved by the 
City Council. 



   
Proposed Amendments to SMC 5.08 Business Licenses, Permits, Regulation and Violations 

Ord. 994 
Revised February 16, 2016 

Page 3 of 6 

2.  [repealed] (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011) 

3.  [repealed] (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011) 

4. A person engaged in carrying on more than one business enterprise or 
activity designated in this Title shall pay the license/permit fee required 
for each business enterprise or activity. (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011; Ord. 668, 
July 2, 1990) 

5.08.1050 [repealed] (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011) 

 

5.08.1060 LICENSE/PERMIT FEES: COLLECTION COSTS AND ATTORNEY 
FEES 

The City may sue in any court of competent jurisdiction to obtain a judgment and 
enforce collection thereof by execution for any fee or late charge due but unpaid 
under this Title.  In any such action, the prevailing party is entitled to recover 
reasonable attorney fees to be set by the court, in addition to its costs and 
disbursements. (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011; Ord. 668, July 2, 1990) 

 

5.08.1070 EXEMPTIONS FROM LICENSE/PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

The following activities, in addition to those activities otherwise specifically 
exempted in this Title, shall be exempt from licensing: 

1. [repealed] (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011) 

2. Dance or performance, carnival, amusement park, amusement 
concessionaire, operated, or conducted by or for the sole benefit of any 
civic organization. (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011) 

3. Person(s) collecting donations of personal property or money for any civic 
organization or in connection with any recognized, nationally conducted 
charity or in connection with any local civic activity. (Ord. 935, July 1, 
2011) 

4. Sidewalk sale, flea market, rummage sale, or other similar activity 
conducted on an infrequent basis by any group in connection with a civic 
organization. (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011) 

5. Upon receipt of written request, the Administrator may exempt other 
activities or devices from the licensing provisions of this Title when, in the 
Administrator's judgment, it does not appear that the purposes of this Title 
would be served by such licensing. (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011; Ord. 668, July 
2, 1990) 



   
Proposed Amendments to SMC 5.08 Business Licenses, Permits, Regulation and Violations 

Ord. 994 
Revised February 16, 2016 

Page 4 of 6 

 

5.08.1080 LICENSE/PERMIT ISSUANCE: RECORDKEEPING 

1. After receipt of reports from all persons, departments, and agencies 
designated to review an application, the Administrator shall determine 
whether the applicant qualifies for issuance of a license/permit, in 
accordance with the requirements of Section 5.08.130.2. If the applicant so 
qualifies, upon first payment of the license/permit fee, the Administrator 
shall issue the license/permit. (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011) 

2. Such license/permit shall contain the signature of the Administrator, and 
shall show the name and address of the licensee, the class of license 
issued, the kind of goods or services to be provided thereunder, the 
amount of fee paid, the date of issuance, and the expiration date.  In the 
case of itinerant merchants and solicitors, it shall also bear a photograph of 
the licensee taken at the time of application. (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011) 

3. The Administrator shall keep a record of all licenses/permits issued in 
accordance with the state public records laws.  (Ord. 668, July 2, 1990) 

5.08.1090 [repealed] (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011) 

 

5.08.2100 TRANSFER OR ASSIGNMENT OF LICENSE/PERMIT 

1. No license or permit issued under the provisions of this Title shall be used 
at any time by any person other than the one to whom it was issued, unless 
duly assigned or transferred as provided herein. 

2. Any assignment or transfer of a license or permit shall be invalid unless 
approved by the Administrator, but if any person sells or transfers the 
entire enterprise for which such license has been paid, and the transfer is 
approved, then the purchaser of that enterprise is not required to pay an 
additional license fee for the balance of the term for which the fee was 
previously paid. (Ord. 668, July 2, 1990) 

 

5.08.2110 DISPLAY OF LICENSE/PERMIT 

1. A license or permit issued for an activity at a fixed place of business shall 
be displayed at all times on the premises where it can be easily read. 

2. A license or permit issued for an activity which is not at a fixed place of 
business shall be displayed at all times by the licensee or permittee and all 
designated employees while engaged in the activity.  Upon request, the 
licensee or permittee or any designated employee shall show the license or 
permit to any person with whom the individual is dealing as part of the 
licensed or permitted activity or to an officer of the City. (Ord. 935, July 1, 
2011) 



   
Proposed Amendments to SMC 5.08 Business Licenses, Permits, Regulation and Violations 

Ord. 994 
Revised February 16, 2016 

Page 5 of 6 

3. [repealed] (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011) 

 

5.08.2120 LICENSE/PERMIT RENEWAL: LATE PENALTY 

1. The application for renewal of an annual license or permit shall be made 
to the Administrator prior to the license/permit expiration date. 

2. A penalty of twenty-five (25%) percent, of the fee shall be added to the 
license fee accompanying any late renewal application. (Ord. 935, July 1, 
2011; Ord. 668, July 2, 1990) 

5.08.2130 REVOCATION OR SUSPENSION OF LICENSE/PERMIT 

1. Upon determination that a licensed or permitted activity, establishment, or 
device is in violation of this Code, state, or federal law, the Administrator 
shall notify the licensee/permittee in writing that the license is to be 
revoked.  The notice shall be mailed (certified mail, return receipt 
requested) not less than thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of 
revocation. (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011) 

2. Upon determination that a licensed or permitted activity or device presents 
an immediate danger to the public or property, the Administrator may 
suspend a license/permit at once.  The suspension shall take effect 
immediately upon notice being received by the licensee/permittee.  The 
Administrator may continue a suspension so long as the reason for the 
suspension exists or until other disposition is made by the City Council. 

3. Notice of revocation or suspension shall be in writing, shall state the 
reason for revocation or suspension, the effective date thereof, and shall 
inform the licensee/permittee of appeal rights as provided herein. 

4. [repealed] (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011) 

 

5.08.2140 APPEALS 

1. Any applicant, licensee, or permittee aggrieved by the action of the 
Administrator in the denial, suspension, or revocation of a permit or 
license or by the action of the Administrator in the determination of the 
fee, shall have the right to appeal to the City Council. (Ord. 935, July 1, 
2011) 

2. If a notice of revocation has been appealed, the revocation shall not take 
effect until final determination of the appeal by the City Council. 

3. Such appeal shall be perfected by filing a written statement with the City 
Council setting forth fully the grounds for such appeal.  The statement 
shall be filed within fourteen (14) days after notice of the action 
complained of has been mailed to the applicant. (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011) 



   
Proposed Amendments to SMC 5.08 Business Licenses, Permits, Regulation and Violations 

Ord. 994 
Revised February 16, 2016 

Page 6 of 6 

4. The City Council shall set a time and place for a hearing on such appeal 
and notice of the hearing before the Council shall be mailed to the 
licensee/permittee at the place of business that appears in the City's 
license/permit records at least ten (10) days prior to the date set for a 
hearing. (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011) 

5. The decision and order of the City Council on such appeal shall be final.  
(Ord. 668, July 2, 1990) 

 

5.08.2150  VIOLATION AND PENALTY 

[repealed sections 1 – 5] (Ord. 935, July 1, 2011) 

 

A violation of this Title is punishable by a fine set by Council Resolution. (Ord. 
987, September 21, 2015). 

 



   
Proposed Amendments to SMC Chapter 5.32 Secondhand Dealers and Pawn Brokers 

Ord. 994 
Page 1 of 5 

CHAPTER 5.32 

SECONDHAND DEALERS AND PAWN BROKERS 

 

SECTIONS 

5.32.010810 License Required 
5.32.020 License Exemptions 
5.32.030820 Recordkeeping 
5.32.040830 Record Forms 
5.32.050 Regulated Property 
5.32.060840 Property Sales 
5.32.070850 Articles to be Tagged 
5.32.080860 Dealings with Minors and Those Under the Influence of Intoxicants 

Prohibited  
5.32.090870 Inspection of Articles and Records 
5.32.100880 Penalty 

 

5.32.010810 LICENSE REQUIRED:  APPLICATION 

1. Secondhand Dealers and Pawn Brokers as defined in this Title, doing 
business in the City shall have a City business license unless otherwise 
exempted herein.  There shall be a separate license for each addressed 
location that a business operates at within the City. 

2. A Secondhand and Pawn license is valid for a term of one year and expires 
on December 31st of each year. 

3. Secondhand Dealers and Pawn Brokers must comply with all Federal, State, 
and Local laws. 

4. Each licensee shall pay an annual licensing fee set by Council resolution 

5.32.020  LICENSE EXEMPTIONS 

The following types of businesses and activities are exempt from this chapter: 

1. A person who engages in, conducts, manages, or carries on any business that 
does not buy regulated property outright, but occasionally accepts in trade 
regulated property as part or full payment for new articles, where such 
business is incidental to the primary business of the sale of new articles or a 
repair service; 

2. A person who engages in, conducts, manages, or carries on any business that 
deals exclusively in the purchase and sale of used whole automobiles, books 
or books on tape, trading cards and sports memorabilia, individual video 
games, music, clothing, furniture, major household electric or gas 
appliances, or farm implements and machinery; 



   
Proposed Amendments to SMC Chapter 5.32 Secondhand Dealers and Pawn Brokers 

Ord. 994 
Page 2 of 5 

3. A person, who engages in, conducts, manages, or carries on any business 
that deals exclusively in purchasing full or partial estates.  The purchaser 
shall keep a receipt for these items for at least one year; 

4. A person who engages in, conducts, manages, or carries on any nonprofit 
corporation or association that purchases, sells or otherwise exchanges only 
donated articles; 

5. A person whose purchases do not exceed 50 items of regulated property 
each year; 

6. A person who buys and sells regulated property which consists of the sale of 
their own personal property acquired for household or other personal use; or 

7. A person who has an event commonly known as a “garage sale,”, “yard 
sale,” or “estate sale” which is regulated by Chapter 5.16. 

5.32.82030 RECORDKEEPING 

1. Any sSecondhand dDealer or pPawnb Broker conducting a business in the 
City, shall submit to the City, documentation of the transactions for 
regulated property in a format set forth by the City which includes all of the 
information set forth by the City.  This format may be, but not limited to 
electronic submission and/or paper copies of transactions. 

2. If the City changes the format for reporting, the business will have 60 days 
to comply with the new format.  If the business can not comply within the 
allotted time, they shall submit a written request for additional time to the 
City before the deadline.  Additional time may not be indefinite but must be 
reasonable. 

1.3. Pawn Brokers are required only to report new transactions.  Loan renewals 
do not need to be reported.keep a daily ledger written in the English 
language, in indelible form, of any articles received on deposit, pledged, or 
purchased, including a description thereof; day and hour of purchase; name 
and address of person from whom received on deposit, pledged, or 
purchased; the form of identification shown; the amount loaned or price 
paid; and, if applicable, the number of the pawn ticket.  Such record shall be 
open for inspection by any police officer at all reasonable times.  No entry in 
such records may be changed, erased, obliterated, or defaced (prior code 
3.203).  

4. Pawn tickets issued shall be numbered consecutively, and if stubs are used 
in connection with such pawn tickets, each stub shall be numbered 
consecutively to conform to the ticket.All records for “regulated property” 
shall be kept in an orderly manner on the Secondhand Dealer or Pawn 
Broker’s premises and open for reasonable inspection by peace officers upon 
demand. Each Secondhand Dealer or Pawn Broker shall keep a paper or 
electronic record of each purchase bearing the signature and/or fingerprint of 
the customer for a period of one year. 



   
Proposed Amendments to SMC Chapter 5.32 Secondhand Dealers and Pawn Brokers 

Ord. 994 
Page 3 of 5 

2.5. If any article regulated property so on deposit, pledge, or purchase has 
engraved thereon any number, word, or initials, or contains any setting of 
any kind, the description in the records shall contain such number, word, or 
initial, and shall show the kind of settings and number of each kind.  

3.6. No sSecondhand dDealer or Pawn Broker shall be required to record the 
description of any property purchased from manufacturers or wholesale 
dealers having an established place of business, or secured from any person 
doing business and having an established place of business in the City, but 
such goods shall be accompanied by a bill of sale or other evidence of 
legitimate purchase and must be shown to any police officer upon request.  

7. The records concerning regulated propertyarticle or materials shall be kept 
for at least one (1) year after the date of receipt of such articles or materials.  
When any business is discontinued, such records or duly authenticated 
copies thereof shall be delivered to the Police Department or shall be 
disposed of as it directs.   

5.32.040830 RECORD FORMS 

In addition to any other records required to be kept by this Chapter, all sSecondhand 
dDealers and pPawn bBrokers shall, at the time of taking, receiving, or purchasing 
any article for the business, placeenter the item and description of the following 
regulated propertyarticles or things pledged, pawned, received, or purchased, upon a 
pawn ticket as well as the sellers information into an electronic reporting system 
approved by the City.  Seller’s information shall be verified with photo 
identification and signature or fingerprint:  

5.32.050 REGULATED PROPERTY 

1. Regulated property is a type of property that has been determined by law 
enforcement to be property frequently the subject of theft or other criminal 
activity.  The following list of regulated property may be added to by the 
Chief of Police in writing to the Secondhand and Pawn Brokers if a 
particular type of property becomes prone to criminal activity. 

a. Jewelry, watches, gems, or precious metals with a retail market value of 
over fifty dollars ($50.00);  

b. Television, video and stereo equipment;  

c. Cameras and camera equipment;  

d. Firearms, operable or not operable;  

e. Sporting equipment specifically and individually identifiable by way of a 
serial number or some other marking;.Furniture with a retail market 
value of over five hundred dollars ($500.00);  

f. Power tools;  

g. Electronic devices such as but not limited to: Computers, phones, 
electronic tablets, and electronic gaming devices;.  



   
Proposed Amendments to SMC Chapter 5.32 Secondhand Dealers and Pawn Brokers 

Ord. 994 
Page 4 of 5 

h. Musical instruments that are specifically and individually identifiable by 
way of a serial number or some other marking; 

i. Individual Coins and Currency that are certified by a nationally 
recognized certifying agency; and  

j. Coins, currency, and token collections that are valued over $1,000. 

 

2. The following list of properties are exempt from reporting: 

a. Precious metals in the form or bullion bars or rounds such as but not 
limited to gold, silver, platinum, and palladium;. 

b. Postage stamps, stamp collections and philatelic items with no unique 
identifier, unless they are over $500 in value or certified; 

c. Individual video game cartridges; 

d. Individual movies; 

e. Individual books that are mass produced with no unique identifier, 
unless they are over $250 in value; and 

f. Coins, currency, and tokens unless certified by a nationally recognized 
certifying agency; and 

g. Clothing 

 

The above lists do not preclude an item from being documented as regulated 
property if a dealer believe there is a need to track the item. 

 

The pawn ticket form shall be approved by and shall include such 
information as the Chief of Police may direct.  Every person regulated by the 
provisions of this Chapter shall deliver to the Police Department every 
Monday all such pawn tickets describing articles or things pledged, pawned, 
bought, taken, or received during the preceding week; such pawn tickets 
must be fully completed.  

5.32.060840 PROPERTY SALES 

1. No regulated property listed in this Chapter shall be sold from the 
secondhand dealer or pawnbroker's place of business for seven (7) days after 
purchase.  

2. Whenever any police officer serves notice in writing to any sSecondhand 
dDealer or pPawn bBroker not to sell any property received on deposit, or 
purchased, or permit same to be redeemed, the property shall not be sold, 
redeemed, or otherwise disposed of until such time as may be determined by 
the Police Department, not exceeding fifteen (15) days from the day of 
notice aforesaid.  Any property purchased by the dealer which is determined 



   
Proposed Amendments to SMC Chapter 5.32 Secondhand Dealers and Pawn Brokers 

Ord. 994 
Page 5 of 5 

to be stolen property, may be seized by the Police Department and may be 
returned to the rightful owner without any recovery of purchase price to the 
dealer from the owner or the City.  

5.32.070850 ARTICLES TO BE TAGGED 

Any sSecondhand dDealer or pPawn bBroker receiving in pledge, by purchase or 
otherwise, any article or goods shall affix to the article or goods a tag upon which 
shall be written a number, in legible characters, which number shall correspond to 
the number in the book required to be kept as heretofore provided or provide an 
alternative form of identifying articles to correspond to the book record approved by 
the Police Department.  

5.32.080860 DEALINGS WITH MINORS AND PERSONS UNDER THE INFLUENCE 
OF INTOXICANTS PROHIBITED 

No secondhand dealer or pawnbroker shall buy or receive on deposit or for pledge 
any article or thing whatsoever from or sell any article or thing to any person under 
the influence of intoxicants.  No sSecondhand dDealer or pPawn bBroker shall buy 
or receive on deposit or for pledge any article or thing whatsoever from any person 
under the age of eighteen (18) years. 

5.32.090870 INSPECTION OF ARTICLES AND RECORDS 

Any person doing business as a sSecondhand dDealer or pPawn bBroker, and any 
person employed by such business, shall permit a representative of the Police 
Department entry to the business premises for the limited purpose of inspecting any 
articles received on deposit, pledged, or purchased in the business as regulated by 
this Chapter and/or the records incident thereto, to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of this Title.  Such inspections may be made at any reasonable time.  

5.32.100880 PENALTY 

Violation of this Chapter is punishable by a fine set by Council resolution. 



 
Resolution No. 941  Page 1 of 1  
February 16, 2016 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
 
DATE:   February 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 941, Refinancing Bonds 
  
ISSUE: 

With Bond rates at a 3 year low, it would be prudent to discuss refinancing the Water Loan with 
Business Oregon that was issued in 2012.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

D.A. Davidson & Co. has submitted a refinancing option that will save the Water Fund 
$347,371.00, reducing the interest on the debt from 3.4% to 2.38%. D.A. Davidson is ranked 6th 
nationally for number of bonds issued in 2010. They are the largest full-service brokerage firm 
headquartered in the Pacific Northwest.   
 
The City worked with D.A. Davidson in 2013 to refinance the Sewer Debt and is confident that 
this transaction will be handled as efficiently as the first. A tentative bond pricing date has been 
set as March 16, 2016, with a scheduled closing date of March 30, 2016.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the City Council direct the Finance Department to move forward with the 
refinance of outstanding Water Debt, and approve Resolution No. 941.  
  
OPTIONS: 
1. Direct Staff to move forward with the refinancing of the current Water debt, approving 

Resolution No. 941. 
 
2. Do nothing, keep existing Water debt. 
 
MOTIONS: 
For Option 1:  Offer a motion to approve Resolution No. 941, which directs the Finance 

Director to refinance Water Debt, with the bond refunding. 
 
For Option 2:  No motion necessary.             







 
Page 1 – Resolution No. 941 
 

2597528.2 001092  FILE 

RESOLUTION NO.  941 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF STAYTON, OREGON AUTHORIZING FULL 
FAITH AND CREDIT BORROWINGS TO REFINANCE OUTSTANDING 

OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton, Oregon (the “City”) is authorized by Oregon Revised Statutes 
Section 271.390 to enter into financing agreements to finance or refinance real or personal 
property which the City Council determines is needed; 

WHEREAS, the City previously entered into borrowings to finance real and personal property, 
including Loan No. S07003 with Business Oregon (formerly the State of Oregon Economic and 
Community Development Department) dated August 2, 2007 and amended April 15, 2009, that 
financed improvements to the City’s water system  (the “Outstanding Borrowing”); 

WHEREAS, the Outstanding Borrowing is currently paid from, and secured by, water system 
revenues; and, 

WHEREAS, current interest rates may be lower than the interest rates that are payable on all or a 
portion of the Outstanding Borrowing and the City may be able to reduce debt service costs or 
favorably restructure its Outstanding Borrowing by refunding all or a portion of the Outstanding 
Borrowing. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Stayton City Council that: 

1. Authorization of Financing Agreements.   

1.1 The City is hereby authorized to enter into one or more financing agreements to refinance 
all or any portion of the real property and personal property that was financed with the 
Outstanding Borrowing pursuant to Oregon Revised Statutes Section 271.390 and other 
relevant provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 287A.  The net proceeds of the 
financing agreements that are executed to refinance this property shall not exceed the 
amount required to pay the principal amount of the Outstanding Borrowing, accrued 
interest through the date the Outstanding Borrowing are redeemed, any redemption or 
prepayment premium and other estimated costs of the refinancing. 

1.2 The financing agreements authorized by this Section 1 are referred to in this Resolution 
as the “Financing Agreements.” 

2. Determination of Need. 

The City hereby determines that the projects financed with the Outstanding Borrowing 
are needed.   

3. Delegation.   

The City Administrator, the Finance Director or the person designated by the City 
Council to act on behalf of the City under this resolution (each of whom is referred to in 



 
Page 2 – Resolution No. 941 
 

2597528.2 001092  FILE 

this resolution as a “City Official”) may, on behalf of the City and without further action 
by the Council:   

3.1 Negotiate, execute and deliver one or more escrow agreements or similar documents (the 
“Escrow Agreements”) that provide for the issuance of one or more series of “certificates 
of participation” or “full faith and credit obligations” (the “Obligations”) that represent 
ownership interests in the loan payments due from the City under the Financing 
Agreements.  Subject to the limitations of this resolution, the Escrow Agreements and 
each series of Obligations may be in such form and contain such terms as the City 
Official may approve. 

3.2 Select one or more commercial banks with which to negotiate and execute each 
Financing Agreement, solicit competitive bids for the purchase of each series of the 
Obligations and award their sale to the bidder offering the most favorable terms to the 
City, or negotiate the terms of the sale of each series of Obligations to D.A. Davidson & 
Co., as underwriter, and sell that series to the underwriter. 

3.3 Deem final and authorize the distribution of a preliminary official statement for each 
series of Obligations, authorize the preparation and distribution of a final official 
statement or other disclosure document for each series of Obligations. 

3.4 Enter into agreements to provide continuing disclosure for owners of each series of 
Obligations in accordance with Rule 15c2-12 of the United States Securities and 
Exchange Commission. 

3.5 Apply for ratings for each series of Obligations, determine whether to purchase municipal 
bond insurance or obtain other forms of credit enhancements for each series of 
Obligations, enter into agreements with the providers of credit enhancement, and execute 
and deliver related documents. 

3.6 Take actions to prepay, call, defease and redeem the Outstanding Borrowing. 

3.7 Engage the services of escrow agents or trustees and any other professionals whose 
services are desirable for the financing. 

3.8 Determine the final principal amount, interest rates, payment dates, prepayment rights 
and all other terms of each Financing Agreement.  Subject to the limitations of this 
resolution, each Financing Agreement may be in such form and contain such terms as the 
City Official may approve.   

3.9 Negotiate, execute and deliver notes to evidence amounts due under the Financing 
Agreements. 

3.10 Issue any qualifying Financing Agreement as a “tax-exempt bond” bearing interest that is 
excludable from gross income under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, 
(the “Code”) and enter into covenants to maintain the excludability of interest on those 
Financing Agreements from gross income under the Code. 



 
Page 3 – Resolution No. 941 
 

2597528.2 001092  FILE 

3.11 Issue any Financing Agreement as a “taxable bond” bearing interest that is includable in 
gross income under the Code. 

3.12 Designate any qualifying Financing Agreement as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” 
pursuant to Section 265(b)(3) of the Code, if applicable. 

3.13 Execute and deliver any other certificates or documents and take any other actions which 
the City Official determines are desirable to carry out this resolution.  

4. Security. 

Each Financing Agreement shall constitute an unconditional obligation of the City, which 
is payable from all legally available funds of the City.  The City Official may pledge the 
City’s full faith and credit and taxing power within the limitations of Sections 11 and 11b 
of Article XI of the Oregon Constitution.   

 
5. Effective Date. 

This resolution shall take effect on the date of its approval by the City Council. 

Introduced and passed this 16th day of February, 2016. 

      CITY OF STAYTON 
 
 
Date:                BY:         

Henry A. Porter, Mayor  
 
 
Date:      ATTEST:         
       Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 
 
 





















 
Monthly Staff Report  Page 1 of 1  
February 16, 2016 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 
 
DATE:   February 16, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Staff Report 
  
     
Below you will see the stats for the Police Department for the month of February 2016. 
  
 January 

2016 
Year to Date 

2016 
January 

2015 
Year to Date 

2015 
Police Activity 729 729 693 693 
Investigated Incidents 251 251 279 279 
Citations/Warning 75/177 75/177 104/152 104/152 
Traffic Accidents 2 2 7 7 
Juvenile Abuse 1 1 5 5 
Arrests 38 38 36 36 
Reserve Volunteer Hrs. 322.50 322.50 359.67 359.67 
Citizen Volunteer Hrs. 5 5 6 6 
Peer Court Referrals: 1 1 4 4 
     

 











 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Kelli Stevens, Administrative Assistant 
 
DATE:   February 16th, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Works Monthly Operating Report for January 2016 
      
KEY ACTIVITIES STATUS 
 
• WWTP Facility Effluent flows: 74.7 million gallons were treated during January. The highest 

flow was 3.77 million gallons on January 20th and the lowest flow was 1.60 
million gallons on January 10th. The average flow was 2.47 million gallons. Total 
rainfall for January was 7.82 inches.  

 
• WTP  Highest production day was 2,613,000 gallons on January 19th, 2016. 
 
• Water System Replaced meter stop at 170 E Hollister. Changed a meter stop at 204 Fern. 

Repair to a water line at Second and High. Flushed hydrants and exercised water 
valves. Installed one new meter with radio read and replaced three meters. 
 

• Streets   Swept 175 curb miles and removed approximately 80 cubic yards of material. 
Most of the material was sand that was applied during the January 4th ice storm. 
STOP sing was knocked over at Locust and Gardner, this was repaired. Used 
3000 pounds of cold patch mix to repair some potholes in the City. 
 

 Parks  Volunteers: Community Service – 0 hours, Volunteer – 0 hours, Life skills High 
School Students – 0 hours. Total = 0 hours. 

    Parks Board Volunteer Hours – 9 hours total – 6 Volunteers 
• Building Permits   

            Permit Type Issued SDC’s Paid 
New Single Family Dwelling   
Residential Building Addition/Alter/Other   
Commercial Building Addition/Alter/Other 1  
Electrical 1  
Mechanical    
Plumbing   

TOTAL 2 0.00 
One (1) Residential SDC = $10,357.00 + $670.00 for Mill Creek SDC + Storm 
Water SDC $1861.00 or $2669.00 

 
Public Works Monthly Operating Report  Page 1 
February 16th, 2016 



 

Planning and Development Monthly Report, January 2016 Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Planning and Development Director 
 
 DATE: February 16, 2016 
 
 SUBJECT: Report of Activities for January, 2016 
  
 

Enforcement Activity Highlights 

The City solicited bids from contractors to have the refuse at 1136 Westwood Dr removed.  The 
property has been foreclosed and occupied by squatters, who left quite a mess.   

Planning & Development Activity Summary 

The Infrastructure Finance Authority within the Business Development Department notified the 
City that our grant application was approved.  The Contract for the grant had not arrived by the 
end of the month. 

Continued to work with Friends of Old Town Stayton to assist in their formation. 

Attended several meetings relative to the regional transportation network. 

Working with Public Works Department staff, improvements to the Geographic Information 
System continued 
 








